
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   February 16, 2021 

TO:     MWA Board Members 

CC:       MWA Staff  

FROM:  Michael McCoy, Executive Director 

RE:    Wednesday, February 17, 2021, Board Meeting 
This month’s board meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, February 17, 2021, at 5:45 pm in the 
board room at Central Office (300 East Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa). If you have 
questions about any items listed below, please call me at 323.6535 (w) or 707.3869 (c). I look 
forward to seeing you on Wednesday. 

The following numbered items correspond with the number of the item on the agenda: 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval 

8. Resolution 02-21-03 – Approval of Land Acquisition for Metro Park East Landfill– Action
Item
The proposed land for purchase is to ensure adequate space is available for future
management of waste at Metro Park East Landfill (MPE). The property owner has
agreed to sell Metro Waste Authority the parcel of 3.0 acres, located south of MPE. Staff
recommends approval.

9. Resolution 02-21-04 – Approval of Compost It! Yard Waste Collection and Compost It!
Program Agreement with Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. – Action Item
Metro Waste Authority (MWA) contracts with private haulers for the collection of yard
waste in member communities that participate in the Compost It! program. MWA and
Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. (ASI) have drafted a contract to provide collection of yard waste
in eight of the 11 member communities currently participating in the Compost It!
program. ASI would be paid $159.82 per ton for yard waste hauled to Metro Park East
Landfill, on behalf of the Compost It! program. This contract would be in effect for one
year, beginning April 1, 2021. Staff recommends approval.

10. Resolution 02-21-05 – Approval of Extension to Compost It! Yard Waste Collection and
Compost It! Program Agreement with Waste Management – Action Item
Metro Waste Authority (MWA) and Waste Management (WM) have drafted a contract for
collection of yard waste in three of the 11 communities that participate in the Compost It!

1 of 37



program. MWA entered the initial term of the Compost It! collection agreement in 2017, 
which was a three-year agreement. The contract allows mutually agreed upon 
extensions. WM requested a change to a per household payment model for all Compost 
It! yard waste delivered to the compost center at Metro Park East Landfill. As a result, 
the hauler would be paid $2.53 per household in Altoona, Pleasant Hill, and Carlisle for 
the 2021-yard waste season.  

2 of 37



Board of Directors 
2021 Calendar Year 

Ron Pogge 
Chair 

David Gisch 
Vice-Chair 

Dean O’Connor 
Altoona 

Mark Holm 
Ankeny 

Wes Enos 
Bondurant 

John Edwards 
Clive 

Joe Gatto 
Des Moines 

Steve Allen 
Elkhart 

David Gisch 
Grimes 

Tom Cope 
Johnston 

Bill Roberts 
Mitchellville 

Ed Kuhl 
Norwalk 

Dean Cooper 
Pleasant Hill 

Rob Sarchet 
Polk City 

Tom Hockensmith 
Polk County 

Gerald Lane 
Runnells 

Ron Pogge 
Urbandale 

Steve Gaer 
West Des Moines 

Susan Skeries 
Windsor Heights 

Michael McCoy 
 Executive Director 

Metro Waste Authority 
Board Meeting 

February 17, 2021 

MWA Central Office 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

5:45 pm 

Members of the public wishing to attend this meeting in person may do so at the MWA 
Central Office, where seats will be arranged to allow for social distancing. Masks will 
be available and are mandatory for public guests. Additional CDC recommendations 

will be implemented. 

Agenda 
1. Call to Order, Roll Call

2. Approval of Regular Agenda

3. Public Forum

CONSENT AGENDA 
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without 
separate discussion unless someone, Board or Public, requests an item be 
removed for consideration: 

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 7

5. Consideration of Minutes January 20, 2021, Metro Waste Authority
Board Meeting – Action for Approval

6. Resolution 02-21-01 - Consideration of December 2020, Financial
Statements – Action to Receive and File

7. Resolution 02-21-02 – Consideration of January 2021, Monthly
Expenditures – Action for Approval

END CONSENT AGENDA 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval – Items 8 through 10 

8. Resolution 02-21-03 – Approval of Land Acquisition for Metro Park East Landfill
– Action Item

9. Resolution 02-21-04 – Approval of Compost It! Yard Waste Collection
and Composting Agreement with Ankeny Sanitation, Inc.– Action Item

10. Resolution 02-21-05 – Approval of Extension to Compost It! Yard Waste
Collection and Composting Agreement with Waste Management –
Action Item

3 of 37



11. Director’s Report

12. Chair’s Report

13. General Board Discussion and Other Business

14. Correspondence

15. Adjournment

March Executive/Finance Meeting: March 3, 2021, MWA Central Office, 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 12:00 pm. 

March Board Meeting: March 17, 2021, MWA Central Office, 300 E. Locust 
Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 5:45 pm. 

4 of 37



300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

January 20, 2021 Unofficial Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting Minutes 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was held at Metro Waste Authority’s Central Office. Mark Holm, chair,
called the January 20, 2021, Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting to order at 5:45 pm.
A quorum was present.

Roll Call – MWA Board Representatives/Alternates in Attendance
Dean O’Connor, Altoona
Mark Holm, Ankeny
John Edwards, Clive
Joe Gatto, Des Moines
David Gisch, Grimes
Tom Cope, Johnston
Bill Roberts, Mitchellville
Ed Kuhl, Norwalk
Dean Cooper, Pleasant Hill
Tom Hockensmith, Polk County
Ron Pogge, Urbandale
Bret Hodne, West Des Moines
Susan Skeries, Windsor Heights

2. Resolution 01-21-01 – Approval of MWA Board of Director Officers for Calendar Year
2021 – Action Item
Moved by Polk County, seconded by Altoona, to approve the MWA Board of Director
Officers for Calendar Year 2021. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

Ron Pogge, Urbandale, was voted in as chair and David Gisch, Grimes, was voted in as
vice-chair.

Executive Director Michael McCoy recognized David McKay, Urbandale alternate, and
Threase Harms, Windsor Heights primary, as outgoing board members. McCoy
welcomed John Larson, Urbandale alternate, and Susan Skeries, Windsor Heights
primary, to the Metro Waste Authority Board.

3. Approval of Regular Agenda
Moved by Ankeny, seconded by Clive, to approve the January 20, 2021, board meeting
agenda as presented. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

4. Public Forum
There were no requests to address the Board.
______________________________________________________________________
CONSENT AGENDA
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate discussion unless
someone, Board or Public, requests that an item be removed for consideration:

5 of 37



5. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 7
Moved by Clive, seconded by West Des Moines, to approve the Consent Agenda, items
4 through 7. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

6. Consideration of Minutes of December 16, 2020, Metro Waste Authority Board
Meeting – Action for Approval

7. Resolution 01-21-02 -- Consideration of November 2020, Financial Statement -
Action to Receive and File

8. Resolution 01-21-03 -- Consideration of December 2020, Monthly Expenditures -
Action for Approval

END CONSENT AGENDA 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval - Items 9 

9. Resolution 01-21-04 - Approval of P-61, Cold Storage Building 1 Retrofit Completion at
Metro Park East Landfill - Action Item
Moved by Clive, seconded by Johnston, to approve Resolution 01-21-04. Motion carried
unanimously by voice vote.

Judi Mendenhall, director of recycling and diversion, reported the building was converted
from a truck shed to the demanufacturing building. The project was completed on time
and under budget, by Formation Group.

10. Director’s Report
Michael McCoy, executive director, reviewed Metro Waste Authority’s key priorities,
highlighting the Material Recovery Facility. Adam Douglas, Graham Construction,
reported the foundation for the tipping floor and pits for the conveyor belts have been
completed. Within the next week, pre-cast walls will be placed, and by next month the
concrete flooring will be poured.

McCoy reported Metro Waste Authority(MWA) staff are working with cities to set dates
for 2021 spring clean-up.

McCoy reported MWA donated about 40 discarded Christmas trees to the City of
Johnston for fish habitat in frozen fishponds.

McCoy reported MWA is working with Polk County Soil and Water to utilize the surplus
of wood from trees disposed of due to the Derecho for five bioreactors that will create
cleaner water in Camp Creek.

The February executive finance meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust
Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, February 3, 2021, at 12:00 pm.

The February board meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust Street, Ste.
100, Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, February 17, 2021 at 5:45 pm.

6 of 37



11. Chair’s Report
Ron Pogge, chair, expressed appreciation to Mark Holm, Ankeny, for his years of
service as Metro Waste Authority’s Board Chair. Pogge congratulated McCoy on his 5th

anniversary and shared successes during his tenure.

12. General Board Discussion and Other Business
David Gisch, Grimes, expressed interest in working with Sarah Borzo, education and
outreach coordinator, to work with libraries for summer programs.

Dean O’Connor, Altoona, and Tom Hockensmith, Polk County, expressed gratitude to
McCoy for his work as Executive Director.

13. Closed Session
Moved by Clive, seconded by Johnston, to enter closed session at 6:16 pm as provided
in Iowa Code 21.5.1.j. to discuss the purchase or sale of particular real estate only
where premature disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase the price the
governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the
governmental body would receive for that property. The minutes and the audio recording
of a session closed under this paragraph shall be available for public examination when
the transaction discussed is completed. No action was taken during the closed session.
A motion was made by Clive, seconded by Johnston, to adjourn closed session at 6:34
pm. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. The public meeting reconvened at 6:36
pm.

14. Adjournment
Moved by Ankeny, seconded by Des Moines, to adjourn the January 20, 2021, board
meeting. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. Meeting adjourned at 6:37 pm.

__________________________________ _____________________________ 
  Michael McCoy, Executive Director   Ron Pogge, Chair 

7 of 37



8 of 37



9 of 37



10 of 37



11 of 37



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

February 17, 2021 
AGENDA ITEM 8 

ITEM:  
Approval of Land Acquisition for Metro Park East Landfill. 

SUMMARY:  
The proposed land for purchase is to ensure adequate space is available for future 
management of waste at Metro Park East Landfill (MPE). The property owner has agreed to sell 
Metro Waste Authority (MWA) the parcel of 3.0 acres, located south of MPE.  

DISCUSSION POINTS:  
On Tuesday, February 9, 2021, the property owner accepted a purchase offer from MWA in the 
amount of $93,000.00.  

Upon Board approval of the purchase, MWA would take final actions to complete the purchase. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends approval of the land acquisition for future management of waste at MPE. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The agreed upon purchase price, between MWA and the current property owner, is $93,000.00. 

Funds are available in the FY20/21 budget. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Purchase Agreement 

CONTACT: 
Michael McCoy, executive director, 515.323.6535 

12 of 37



13 of 37



14 of 37



15 of 37



16 of 37



17 of 37



18 of 37



19 of 37



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

February 17, 2021 
AGENDA ITEM 9 

ITEM:  
Approval of Compost It! Yard Waste Collection and Compost It! Program Agreement with 
Ankeny Sanitation, Inc.  

SUMMARY:  
Metro Waste Authority (MWA) contracts with private haulers for the collection of yard waste in 
member communities that participate in the Compost It! program.  

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
MWA and Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. (ASI) have drafted a contract to provide collection of yard 
waste in eight of the 11 member communities currently participating in the Compost It! program. 

- Affected Communities: ASI is the current solid waste hauler for all but one of the cities
proposed for yard waste collection, including: Bondurant, Clive, Grimes, Johnston,
Norwalk, Polk City, and Windsor Heights. The contract also includes yard waste
collection for the City of West Des Moines.

- Rate: ASI would be paid $159.82 per ton for yard waste hauled to Metro Park East
Landfill, on behalf of the Compost It! program.

- Term: This contract would be in effect for one year, beginning April 1, 2021.

- Bond Requirements: ASI has requested acceptance of a line of credit in the amount of
$500,000, in lieu of a Bond.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the Compost It! yard waste collection and composting agreement 
with Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS:   
Yard waste collection is a budgeted expense. The revenue from Compost It! bags, stickers and 
carts will cover the cost of the expense.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Contract for Compost It! Yard Waste Collection and Compost It! Program Agreement with 
Ankeny Sanitation, Inc.  

CONTACT: 
Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, 515.323.6501 

20 of 37



November 2016February 2021  

Metro Waste Authority 
Compost It! Yard Waste Collection and Composting Agreement 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _____ day of, _________, 20162021, by 
and between Metro Waste Authority, an entity organized pursuant to Section 28E of the Iowa 
Code (hereinafter referred to as "Authority" or "MWA" ), and __________________________, 
hereinafter referred to as "Contractor." 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, the Contractor has heretofore submitted a proposal (Contractor 's Proposal) to 

provide curbside yard waste collection service to eleven eight (118) Central Iowa communities 
that participate in the Compost It! yard waste collection and composting program and to deliver 
the same to the Metro Park East Landfill, and providing that all of the expenses of every kind and 
nature incurred in collecting and depositing said yard waste material shall be borne and paid for 
by the Contractor. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants given each to the 

other and the fees established herein, it is hereby agreed by the parties hereto that: 
 

Section 1. Definitions 
The following definitions shall apply to this Agreement: 

 

Authority's Service Area shall mean the incorporated areas within the political boundaries of any 
Authority member or planning member and the area under the jurisdiction of any entity that may 
contract with MWA for curbside yard waste collection service. MWA's Service area may change 
from time to time. 

 

Approved Receptacles shall mean Compost It! bags, generic yard waste bags with Compost It! 
stickers, Compost It! stickers adhered to brush bundles (not to exceed 18 inches in diameter and 
four feet in length), and Compost It! rolling carts (96-gallon). 

 

Contractor's Proposal shall mean Contractor's proposal to the Authority in response to the 
Authority' s Request for Proposals dated November 16, 2016, and all addenda thereto and all 
follow-up clarifications submitted by the Contractor. 

 

Designated Collection Area shall mean all Eligible Residences identified for Compost It! yard 
waste collection and composting within Authority's Service Area initially as identified in Schedule 
2 and as it may be changed by MWA or Participating Member Communitei s from time to time. 

 

Eligible Residence shall mean a resident who lives within a Participating Member Community and 
are eligible for city services. Member communities determine which residents are eligible. 

 

Exceptional Service shall mean the pick-up, handling, and return of Compost It! rolling cart(s) to 
the point of Set-Out, which may be other than curbside, at those Eligible Residences occupied by 

Formatted: Font: Bold

21 of 37



2 November 2016February 2021  

physically handicapped, elderly, or others as designated by MWA as requiring such special 
service. 

 

Participating Member Communities shall mean those communities that contract with MWA for 
curbside yard waste collection service. 

 

Yard Waste Material shall mean waste materials that include lawn trimmings and garden waste 
such as leaves, grass clippings, brush and small branches but does not include stumps, garbage, 
stone, concrete or other non-organic types of waste. All yard waste must remain separate from 
residential garbage and only collected through proper use of Approved Receptacles. 

 

Set-Out shall mean Yard Waste Material that is placed in Approved Receptacles at the curb of an 
Eligible Resident no later than 7 6 a.m. on their designated collection day, which is no less than 
three feet from garbage and recycling carts and other obstructions, such as mailboxes. 

 
Section 2. Contract Term 
The initial term of this contract shall be three one years starting February April I1, 20172021, and 
can be mutually extended from year to year by written agreement. Additional terms may be 
negotiated upon mutually agreeable terms.   The right of MWA to extend the initial terms as set 
forth above does not constitute or imply any obligation to do so. 

 
Section 3. Designated Collection Area 
During the term of the Agreement the Contractor shall collect and deposit all Yard Waste Material 
from Eligible Residences identified for Compost It! yard waste collection and composting within 
Authority's Service Area. 

 
Currently, the Agency contracts with eleven eight ( I I(8) Central Iowa communities to provide 
yard waste collection services: Bondurant, Clive, Grimes, Johnston, Norwalk, Polk City, West Des 
Moines, and Windsor HeightsAltoona, Bondurant, Carlisle, Clive, Grimes, Johnston, Norwalk, 
Pleasant Hill, Polk City, West Des Moines and Windsor Heights. In the event the Agency contracts 
with additional communities during the term of this Agreement, or if communities withdraw from 
participating in the program during the term of this Agreement, the Designated Collection Area 
shall be automatically amended to include or exclude the relevant area over which such 
municipality or other public entity has control. In the event all of the entities included within the 
Designated Collection Area shall withdraw from collection service, this Agreement shall 
terminate. 

 
Section 4. Contractor Compensation 
The Contractor shall be compensated for each ton of Yard Waste Material it collects from Eligible 
Residents within the Designated Collection Area and delivered to the compost site at Metro Park 
East Landfill. The contractor will communicate accurate information at the scale allowing MWA 
staff to identify and label accepted Compost It! Program yard waste material into the Waste Works 
system. MWA will generate a report and pay Contractor based on material code and yard waste 
tonnage each month following the month of performance. 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

22 of 37



3 November 2016February 2021 

Fee Adjustment 
No price escalation will be allowed during the original one-year term of agreement. After the first 
year of the contract the collection fee shall be adjusted on the anniversary date of the Agreement 
as follows. 

DELIVERY LOCATION 202117 2018 2019 

The effective date of the tonnage fee adjustment will be the first Monday of the start of yard waste 
season each year. 

Other than any proposed price adjustment set forth above, there will be no other price adjustments 
during the initial term of the contract. 

Section 5. Services to be Provided By Contractor 
A. The Contractor shall provide weekly collection of Yard Waste Material to all Eligible
Residences within the Designated Collection Area specified in Section 3 above. The collection
schedule shall coincide with the regular trash collection schedule for such area wherever possible,
provided that said collection shall coincide with the regular trash collection schedule where
required by the municipality within which the Eligible Residence is located. The Contractor shall
prepare a collection schedule that will be subject to annual review and approval by MWA. The
refuse collection schedule of the cities within the Designated Collection Area and the house counts
as of the date of the execution  of this contract are set out in Schedule 2 attached  here to; however
it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to determine the exact number of homes on its
individual collection routes. Contractor will be informed of any new customers by  the
Participating Member Community. Yard waste season generally runs April through November,
and for two weeks following the Christmas holiday, but is subject to change at the sole discretion
of the Agency.

B. The Contractor may only refuse to provide service to an Eligible Residence in the event and to
the extent that the material is not Yard Waste Material and/or that has not been properly  Set-Out
in Approved Receptacles.  If a household Set-Out consistently contains unacceptable materials
such as garbage or recyclables, the driver should use the camera to detect the contaminants, note
the household location, and report such occurrences to MWA. In the event the Contractor shall
refuse service to any Eligible Residence under this provision, the Contractor shall advise the person
affected in writing of the reason for the refusal of collection service.  This shall be accomplished
by the Contractor affixing an information tag (i.e., a "rejection notice") on the rolling cart, yard
waste bag, or in some like manner determined by MWA to be acceptable. Blank form rejection
notices will be provided by the Contractor.

C. On each regularly scheduled collection day, the Contractor shall collect from Eligible
Residences all collectible Yard Waste Material that is in Approved Receptacles placed in the
proper Set-Out location for collection as determined by MWA and municipality. If a collection

Metro Park East 
Landfill: 
12181 University Ave. 
NE in Mitchellville 

$128.95159.82 

23 of 37



4 November 2016February 2021  

from an Eligible Residence is missed and the Contractor is notified by the household, MWA, or 
municipality, the Contractor shall return to collect the materials. In all cases, the missed collection 
shall be handled within 24 hours of notification or during the next scheduled work shift, whichever 
is sooner. In the case of complaints regarding collection service or any related activities, the 
Contractor shall, upon being notified of the complaint, resolve the complaint with the Eligible 
Residence or other person/entity submitting the complaint. The Contractor shall work 
cooperatively with the eligible households, municipalities, and/or Authority to resolve complaints 
as appropriate. 

 
D. Certain Eligible Residences in the area defined in Section 3 above may require Exceptional 
Service due to the occupant(s) being physically handicapped or elderly, or both. MWA and/or 
municipality shall identify those Eligible Residences requiring Exceptional Service prior to the 
initiation of service, and Contractor shall collect Yard Waste Material at the location of Set-Out at 
such premises and return any Compost It! rolling cart to the original location of Set-Out. This 
location of Set-Out may vary due to the individual needs and conditions of the occupant(s). The 
list of Eligible Residences requiring Exceptional Service may be modified from time-to-time by 
MWA and/or municipality throughout the term of this Agreement. 

 
E. The Contractor shall not litter public or private property while collecting and removing Yard 
Waste Material and shall clean up any spilled Yard Waste Material, if any, immediately. All Yard 
Waste Material hauled by the Contractor shall be so contained or enclosed that leaking, spilling, 
or blowing are prevented. 

 
F. The Contractor shall weigh and deposit all collected Yard Waste Material at the Facility in 
accordance with the schedule of operating hours for the Facility. 

 
G. The Contractor shall take reasonable care to prevent damage to carts during collection. 

 
H. The Contractor shall provide curbside collection of all Yard Waste Material and shall ensure 
that only Yard Waste Material is collected. 

 
I. The Contractor shall create, install and maintain an information system which will be adequate 
to provide for the storage and ready retrieval of data required to be reported to MWA under the 
terms of this Agreement. Within ten (10) days following the end of each month of the term of this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall submit to MWA (either in hard copy format or electronically in 
PDF or Microsoft Office format) all information and data to be reported by Contractor to MWA 
under the terms of Section 7F of this Agreement. 

 
J. The Contractor shall obtain, at its own expense, all permits and licenses required by law or 
ordinance and maintain same in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement. 
Contractor shall also pay, at its own expense, all fees associated with the collection and removal 
of the Yard Waste Material from Eligible Residences. 

 
K. Collection days for Yard Waste Materials shall coincide with waste collection days in the 
communities indicated as set out in the attached Schedule 2. The Contractor(s) must comply with 
all restrictions on collection operations that are in place in each municipality. 

24 of 37



5 November 2016February 2021  

 
L. Yard Waste Materials will be kept separate from trash by residential generators and shall be 
placed in Approved Receptacles for collection by the Contractor. Eligible Residents will be 
required to roll the Compost It! cart and/or place their yard waste bags at their collection point. 
Contractor will deliver the materials to the Facility. 

 
M. The Contractor shall establish collection routes in a manner that provides collection services to 
all Eligible Residents. The Contractor shall submit a map designating the collection routes to 
MWA for their files. 

 
N. The Contractor shall provide an adequate number of vehicles for regular collection services and 
sufficient spares to provide uninterrupted service. Automatic lifters must be compatible with 
rolling carts. The collection vehicles must be outfitted with windscreens or shields to minimize 
wind-blown litter when tipping the carts. The vehicle must be outfitted with a camera to detect 
large unacceptable materials. All equipment and vehicles used by the selected Contractor shall be 
titled, registered and licensed in the State of Iowa. The Contractor shall provide copies of each 
Iowa equipment or vehicle registration document for each vehicle. Contractor shall keep all 
equipment in proper repair and in a clean, sanitary and presentable condition. All vehicles shall 
be secure, preventing any leakage of fluids or littering of materials. All vehicles shall be 
manufactured and maintained to conform to applicable ANSI standards. Each vehicle shall be 
permanently identified, at a minimum, with the Contractor's name and phone number plainly 
visible on each side of the vehicle. 

 
0. All Yard Waste Materials shall be delivered to the facility set forth herein. The facility site 
layout, a schedule of operating hours, and a complete description of delivery procedures shall be 
provided to the Contractor by MWA. All collection vehicles delivering Yard Waste Materials to 
the Facility must weigh upon entering and exiting the site. 

 
P. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall it be construed or interpreted, to constitute the 
grant of a franchise or exclusive right to the Contractor to collect Yard Waste Material in the 
Designated Collection Area set forth in Section 3 above. Neither the Contractor nor its employees 
shall make any representations in any manner to the contrary. 

 
Section 6. Services to be Provided By MWA 
A. MWA shall facilitate the purchase and delivery of Compost It! rolling carts to the Participating 
Member Communities. MWA shall receive, store and distribute the storage containers prior to 
commencement of collection services and during provision of the services as needed under this 
Agreement. MWA shall distribute new or replacement carts to Eligible Residences that may be 
added or may require a replacement cart. 

 
B. MWA shall arrange for the production of all Compost It! compostable yard waste bags and 
Compost It! stickers to be used for collection of Yard Waste Material in the Designated Collection 
Area. Program instructions shall be printed on the bags. 

 
C. MWA shall arrange for the storage and distribution of the Compost It! compostable yard waste 
bags and Compost It! stickers to area grocers, hardware stores and discount retail stores in 

25 of 37



6 November 2016February 2021  

participating communities. (Bag and sticker price is the same in all communities). 
 

D. MWA shall be responsible for educating residents on the proper use of the Compost It! program, 
in conjunction with participating communities, via radio, television, newsletters, social media, 
websites and various other means. 

 
Section 7. Contractor's Operations 
A. The Contractor shall provide MWA with maps and schedules of collection routes and shall keep 
such information current at all times. 

(I) Maps and schedules of collection routes shall be provided to MWA not less than twenty 
(20) days prior to the initiation of collection operations or changes in operation. The 
Contractor shall not initiate collection operations nor shall the Contractor implement 
any changes in collection routes or schedules without first receiving written approval 
from MWA. 

 
(2) Maps and schedules of collection routes shall show the days for regularly scheduled 

collection for each route and area. 
 

(3) The Contractor shall observe holidays corresponding with those in each municipality 
and shall so notify persons to be affected by Contractor's holiday collection schedule 
prior to the holiday in question. Persons whose regularly scheduled collection day falls 
on a holiday will be serviced on the next regularly scheduled collection day, or in 
accordance with the applicable municipal holiday collection schedule for general trash 
collection, whichever comes first. The Contractor shall not suspend collection service 
due to inclement weather unless specifically authorized to do so by MWA. MWA shall 
notify the Contractor of any delay, modification, or suspension of service as soon as 
practicable after a decision is made. If collection is suspended, Contractor shall perform 
collection on the next regular collection day. 

 
B. The Contractor shall at all times provide and maintain a sufficient number of collection vehicles, 
equipment, tools, supplies and personnel necessary to perform the services called for under this 
Agreement. The Contractor shall utilize collection vehicles specifically designated for the 
collection of Yard Waste Material. The Contractor shall own, operate and employ all vehicles, 
equipment, tools, supplies and personnel used in the performance of the services required under 
this Agreement unless some other manner of providing such items is approved by MWA. 

 
C. All vehicles and other equipment used in the performance of this Agreement must be clearly 
identified, titled, registered, and licensed in the State of Iowa, and must be kept in good repair, 
appearance, and in a sanitary condition at all times. Safety inspections must be provided as required 
by State of Iowa and local laws. 

 
(I) Bodies of Contractor's trucks shall be enclosed, water-tight, sanitary, and capable of 

being unloaded by dumping or automatic push-out means. 

26 of 37



7 November 2016February 2021  

(2) All of Contractor's equipment shall be essentially a standard product of a reputable 
manufacturer, so that continuing service and delivery of spare parts may be assured. 
All vehicles shall be manufactured and maintained to conform to American National 
Standards Institute (ANSI) standards. 

 
(3) All of Contractor's equipment shall have clearly visible letters with the name, address, 

and phone number of the Contractor's local office on each side of the equipment. Letters 
shall be at least six (6) inches high and of proportionate width to be easily readable. 

 
(4) Contractor shall ensure that each vehicle carries sufficient hand tools to allow cleanup 

of spilled or littered Yard Waste Material, a first aid kit, and necessary emergency 
equipment. 

 
(5) Contractor shall furnish MWA with a list identifying all vehicles to be used in fulfilling 

this Agreement and notify MWA of any additions or deletions at least thirty (30) days 
prior to such addition(s) or deletion(s). The list shall include the year, make, and model 
of chassis and body, registration and license number of each vehicle. Contractor shall 
update the list annually. 

 
D. The Contractor shall employ personnel of sufficient numbers and qualifications to carry out the 
Contractor's obligations under this Agreement. Such personnel shall have the ability and authority 
to make operating decisions during normal working hours. The Contractor shall have key 
maintenance and operational personnel on call at all other times. 

 
(I) Employees who normally and regularly come into direct contact with the public shall 

bear some means of individual identification such as a name tag or identification card. 
Contractor's employees shall be courteous at all times and shall work quietly, not use 
profane or loud language. 

 
(2) Employees driving the Contractor's vehicles shall at all times possess and carry a valid 

commercial vehicle operator's license of the State of Iowa required for the type of 
vehicle they are operating. 

 
(3) Contractor's employees, officers, and agents, shall, at no time, be allowed to identify 

themselves or in any way represent themselves as being employees or agents of MWA 
or a municipality. 

 
(4) No person shall be denied employment or all benefits of employment by the Contractor 

for reasons of race, religion, color, sex, or national origin. Contractor shall take 
affirmative action to ensure same. Benefits of employment shall include, but not be 
limited to, recruitment, compensation, training, promotion, transfer, termination, and 
disciplinary action. The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to 
employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provision of this 
non-discrimination clause. Similar notice shall be included in any advertisements for 
employees. 

27 of 37



8 November 2016February 2021  

E. Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall establish and maintain a local 
office and an authorized service manager within the MWA service area and shall designate in 
writing to MWA the agent upon whom all notices may be served from MWA or a municipality. 
Services upon the Contractor's agent shall always constitute service upon the Contractor. 

 
(I) Contractor's local office shall be open during normal business hours (8:00 a.m. to 

5:00 p.m. CST) so that customers can lodge complaints, requests for information, or 
requests for service. 

 
(2) Contractor's local office shall have a responsible person in charge during normal 

business hours on collection days, shall be equipped with sufficient telephones, and 
sufficient attendants to receive telephone calls. Attendant(s) shall receive calls in a 
courteous and polite manner, record all complaints and requests for service and resolve 
all complaints in an expeditious manner within the following twenty-four (24) hour 
period or during the next scheduled work shift, whichever is sooner. Contractor shall 
maintain capability for telephone answering services on a 24-hour-per-day basis. 
When a complaint is received on the day preceding a holiday or a weekend, it shall be 
serviced on the next working day. Contractor shall maintain a special team of customer 
service professionals assigned to MWA contracts and trained on specific details of 
service areas. When a resident calls 515-244-7336, the call shall be routed directly to 
this team. 

 
(3) The Contractor shall furnish MWA with the name and background information of its 

service manager fifteen (15) days prior to commencing collection operations and shall 
notify MWA if the service manager or agent is changed at any time. 

 
(4) Contractor's service manager shall serve as the point of contact for dealings and 

communications with the Contractor. 
 

F. The Contractor shall create, install and maintain an information system to provide storage and 
ready retrieval of operating data. The Contractor shall prepare and maintain proper, accurate, and 
complete records and accounts of all transactions related to the services provided, including any 
records that maybe required by the State. All quantities shall be reported in tons. These records 
shall include but shall not be limited to: 

 
(I) Safety and accident reports; 
(2) Regulatory inspections; 
(3) Complaint log noting location, problem, and resolution; 
(4) Date and addresses of non-compliant set outs and location of where education materials 

are placed, with a photograph of such non-compliant set-outs when occurring 
consistently at a given household. 

 
The Contractor shall provide MWA with a recordkeeping and reporting format using software 
acceptable to MWA (electronically in PDF or Microsoft Office format) on a monthly basis, within 
ten (10) operating days following the end of each month. 

28 of 37



9 November 2016February 2021  

Section 8. Customer Complaints and Notification 
A. The Contractor shall make a record of each complaint received on a form approved by MWA 
and shall indicate thereon the name and address of the complainant, the day and hour the complaint 
was received, the nature of the complaint, the nature of disposition of the complaint and the day 
and hour the complaint was resolved. The Contractor shall maintain all such forms during the term 
of this Agreement and shall provide copies of the same to MWA upon request. 

 
B. MWA shall notify the Contractor of each complaint reported to MWA. It shall be the duty of 
the Contractor to take whatever steps may be necessary and appropriate to remedy the cause of the 
complaint and notify MWA of its disposition within twenty-four (24) hours after receipt of the 
complaint. MWA shall provide a list of such complaints received by MWA to the Contractor each day 
at the Contractor's office. 

 
C. The Contractor shall provide MWA with a full explanation of the disposition of any complaint 
involving a customer's claim of damage to private property as the result of actions of Contractor's 
employees or agents. 

 
D. The failure of the Contractor to remedy the cause of any service complaint which is found to 
be justified shall be deemed a breach of this Agreement. In the event of such breach, the Contractor 
shall pay liquidated damages to MWA according to the following schedule.   It is agreed between the 
parties that MWA may deduct such damages from payments due or to become due to the 
Contractor. 

 
(I) Failure to clean up spilled Yard Waste Material - $20 each incident 
(2) Failure or neglect to collect Yard Waste Material from any Eligible Residence within 

twenty-four (24) hours from the scheduled date for collection - $50 each failure or 
neglect. 

(3) Failure to return yard waste cart to designated location - $10 each instance 
(4) Failure to keep equipment in clean, safe and sanitary manner- $100 per vehicle incident 

per day 
(5) Failure to have vehicle operators properly licensed - $100 per incident per day 
(6) Failure to maintain office hours in the manner specified in Section 6E - $100 per 

incident per day 
(7) Failure to file on a timely basis information and reports required by this Agreement - 

$50 per incident per day 
(8) Failure or neglect to complete each route on the regular scheduled collection day, if 

failure to complete collection is attributable to the Contractor-$1,000.00 for each route 
not completed each day, 

(9) If MWA is required to perform more than two (2) hours of work during a forty (40) 
hour work week due to Contractor's neglect or failure to perform, Contractor shall be 
charged an amount for all time spent by MWA at the rate of $40 per hour. 

 
Complaints listed above will be vigorously investigated and penalties will be assessed when 
justified. However, MWA, prior to any assessment of penalties, shall give written notice to 
Contractor of any allegations and shall also give reasonable opportunity for Contractor to contest 

29 of 37



November 2016 February 2021  

the alleged violation. MWA shall have the option to waive penalty assessment where, in its sole 
judgment, circumstances warrant the same. 

 
Section 9. Quality of Service 
A. If, at any time during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall fail to have available 
equipment (including vehicles) adequate for the performance of the Contractor's obligations 
hereunder, or if the equipment used by the Contractor for such purposes shall be or become 
inadequate, MWA shall notify the Contractor in writing of any such deficiency and shall direct the 
Contractor to add, repair or replace equipment necessary to rectify the same. If the Contractor 
shall fail to comply with any such order within sixty (60) days after its receipt, such failure shall 
constitute a breach of this Agreement and the Contractor shall be liable to MWA for liquidated 
damages in the amount of$300.00 for each day that the Contractor fails to comply with such notice 
after the expiration of the initial sixty (60) day period. 

 
B. MWA shall have the right to inspect Contractor's facilities, equipment, operations, and the 
records of the Contractor at any reasonable time. 

 
Section 10. Termination 
A. This Agreement shall terminate automatically as of the date the Contractor makes a general 
assignment for the benefit of its creditors or proceedings are commenced in a court of competent 
jurisdiction for the reorganization, liquidation or involuntary dissolution of Contractor, or for its 
adjudication as bankrupt, or for the appointment of a receiver of the property of the Contractor. 
Upon any termination under this provision, this Agreement shall not be or become an asset of the 
Contractor in the hands of any trustee or receiver. 

 
B. MWA shall have the option to terminate this Agreement at any time for cause. Cause is defined 
as any breach by Contractor of any provision or provisions of this Agreement or the insolvency of 
the Contractor.   MWA shall exercise its option to terminate this Agreement under this provision 
as follows. MWA shall give written notice to the Contractor of its intent to terminate the 
Agreement and shall set forth therein the reason or reasons for such termination. The Contractor 
shall have ten (10) days following the receipt of such notification to remedy the cause for 
termination set forth in such notice. If the Contractor shall fail, within such ten (10) days, to 
remedy such cause, the Agreement shall terminate. 

 
C. Upon the termination of this Agreement under the provisions of this section MWA shall have 
no further obligations to the contractor, provided, however, that termination shall not abrogate, 
impair, release or extinguish any debt, obligation or liability of the Contractor to MWA hereunder 
which may have accrued prior to such termination, including, but not limited to, any such debt, 
obligation or liability which was the cause of termination or arose out of such cause. 

 
D. Upon termination under this provision, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work 
performed to date of termination provided that MWA shall have the right to withhold any amounts 
then due or to become due to Contractor hereunder for liquidated damages as otherwise provided 
for hereunder and for expenses incurred by MWA arising out of or related to the breach or other 
cause for termination. 

30 of 37



11 November 2016February 2021  

E. No right or remedy conferred upon MWA under the terms of this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, the right of termination or the right to assess liquidated damages shall be exclusive of 
any other right conferred upon MWA under the terms of this Agreement or by law or equity. All 
rights and remedies conferred upon MWA under the terms of this Agreement or by law or equity 
are cumulative and no single exercise of any such right or remedy shall preclude the exercise of 
any other such right or remedy with respect to the same or any other breach by Contractor. 

 
F. In the event of any termination under this Section, MWA shall have the right to forthwith obtain 
copies from Contractor of all records prepared by or used by the Contractor in the performance of 
this Agreement through the date of termination. 

 
Section 11. Contractor's Insurance and Bond Requirements 
A. Contractor shall, at all times, keep fully insured, at its own expense, all persons employed by it 
in connection with the performance of its obligations hereunder as required by the laws of the State 
of Iowa relating to worker's compensation insurance and it shall hold MWA free and harmless 
from all liability to any employee of the Contractor or its agents, who may be injured while 
performing work or labor necessary to carry out the provisions of this Agreement, except for that 
due to Authority's gross negligence or willful misconduct. The Contractor shall supply to MWA 
memorandum policies demonstrating the existence of such coverage. 

 
B. Contractor shall keep all trucks and motor vehicles used in the performance of this Agreement 
insured with minimum liability coverages of $1,000,000 for any one person; $1,000,000 for any 
one accident; and $1,000,000 for property damage. Additionally, the Contractor shall obtain and 
maintain a policy of general liability insurance with minimum liability coverages of $1,000,000 
for any one person; $1,000,000 for any one incident; and property damage of $1,000,000. Such 
policy shall fully provide coverage for all of the Contractor's operating exposures related to the 
Contractor's activities in carrying out the terms of this Agreement. 

 
C. Contractor shall provide to MWA certificates of insurance demonstrating the existence of all 
required insurance coverage. Such policy or policies shall name MWA and each member 
municipality of MWA as an additional insured and, further, shall contain a provision requiring 
written notice to MWA at least thirty (30) days prior to any change or cancellation of such 
coverage. All policies of insurance required to be obtained and maintained by Contractor pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement shall he subject to the approval of MWA. 

 
D. Contractor expressly understands and agrees that any insurance protection obtained and 
maintained by the Contractor pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall in no way limit the 
Contractor's obligation to indemnify and save harmless MWA under the provisions of Section 12 
of this Agreement. 

 
E. It shall be solely the responsibility of the Contractor to obtain property insurance protecting 
against the loss of or damage to any premises, structures or equipment owned or operated by the 
Contractor and used by it in the performance of its obligations under the terms of this Agreement. 
MWA shall have no responsibility for any such loss or damage. 

31 of 37



12 November 2016February 2021  

F. Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, Contractor shall purchase and 
provide a bond line of credit in the amount of Five Hundred Thousand and no/100 Dollars 
($500,000.00), payable to the Authority, covering the faithful performance of the Contractor's 
duties and responsibilities under the Agreement and any and all payment obligations of the 
Contractor under the Agreement. The bond line of credit shall remain in force for the entire 
duration of the Agreement and shall be in a form acceptable to the Authority. 

 
Section 12. Compliance with Laws 
Prior to commencement of performance of services hereunder, the Contractor shall make itself 
familiar with all statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations having application to the services it 
provides hereunder and, during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall at all times comply 
with all such statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations in the carrying out of its obligations 
hereunder. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for any fines, penalties or forfeitures 
occasioned by its failure to adhere to, or its violation of, any such statutes, ordinances, rules or 
regulations. 

 
Section 13. Indemnification 
Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless MWA and its member municipalities, and their 
respective officers, employees and agents, from all claims, suits, demands or causes of action of 
any nature or description whatsoever made upon or brought against them or any one of them for 
or on account of any injuries or damages sustained by any person or entity as a result of the 
negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor, its employees or agents committed or omitted by 
them or any of them in the carrying out of the Contractor's obligations pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement, except that which is due to Authority's gross negligence or willful misconduct. The 
Contractor's indemnification agreement includes all costs and expenses incurred by the person or 
entity to be indemnified, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney fees. 

 
Section 14. Assignment 
The Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or any part of it to any other party without the 
express written consent of MWA. MWA shall not assign this Agreement or any part of it to any 
other party. 

 
Section 15. Force Majeure 
Neither Contractor nor MWA shall be held liable for the failure to perform their duties if such 
failure is caused by a catastrophe, war, strike, Act of God or other similar contingency beyond 
reasonable control of either party. In the event of a strike, the Contractor shall use its best efforts 
to minimize any harm to MWA, including, but not limited to the obligation to hire temporary 
employees during a strike period. 

 
Section 16. Modification of Agreement 
No amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing and signed 
by the parties hereto. Provided, if there shall be a conflict between the provisions of this document 
and other documents incorporated herein by reference, the provisions of this document shall 
control. 

32 of 37



13 November 2016February 2021  

Section 17. Governing Law 
This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Iowa. 

 
Section 18. Illegal Provisions 
If any provisions of this Agreement shall be declared illegal, void or unenforceable, the other 
provisions shall not be affected but shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
Section 19. Relationship of Parties 
Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor should it be interpreted or construed, as in any way 
establishing a partnership between the parties hereto or as constituting the Contractor as the agent, 
representative or employee of MWA or the member municipalities of MWA, or vice versa, for any 
purpose whatsoever. The Contractor is, and shall remain during the term of this Agreement, an 
independent contractor with respect to the performance of its obligations hereunder and not a 
partnership to MWA. 

 
Section 20. Nonwaiver 
No failure, forbearance, neglect or delay by either party to enforce this Agreement or any provision 
of this Agreement or to exercise any of such party's rights hereunder shall effect or limit such 
party's right to strictly enforce the same, and shall not constitute or be interpreted as a waiver of 
any right to enforce this Agreement or any provision thereof in the future. 

 
Section 21. Payment of Attorneys Fees 
If judicial proceedings are necessary to enforce the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party 
shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees, in addition to any other legal or equitable relief to 
which it may be entitled. 

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

33 of 37



14 November 2016February 2021  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this  day of 

 
 
 
 
 
METRO WASTE AUTHORITY: 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
                    EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 
 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
Its: _____________________________________
 

34 of 37



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

February 17, 2021 
AGENDA ITEM 10 

ITEM:  
Approval of Extension of Compost It! Yard Waste Collection and Composting Agreement with 
Waste Management. 

SUMMARY: 
Metro Waste Authority (MWA) and Waste Management (WM) have drafted a contract for 
collection of yard waste in three of the 11 communities that participate in the Compost It! 
program.  

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
MWA entered the initial term of the Compost It! collection agreement in 2017, which was a 
three-year agreement. The contract allows mutually agreed upon extensions. WM requested to 
change to a per household payment model for all Compost It! yard waste delivered to the 
compost center at Metro Park East Landfill. As a result, the hauler would be paid $2.53 per 
household in Altoona, Pleasant Hill, and Carlisle for the 2021-yard waste season.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of extension of Compost It! yard waste collection and composting 
agreement. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS:   
Yard waste collection is a budgeted expense. The revenue from Compost It! bags, stickers and 
carts will cover the cost of the increased expense.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Extension Agreement of Compost It! Yard Waste Collection and Composting with Waste 
Management. 

CONTACT: 
Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, 515.323.6501 

35 of 37



Metro Waste Authority 
Extension of Term—Compost It! Yard Waste Collection and Composting Agreement 

THIS EXTENSION OF TERM is made and entered into this ____ day of March February 
20202021, by and between Metro Waste Authority, an entity organized pursuant to Section 28E 
of the Iowa Code, (hereinafter referred to as "Authority" or “MWA”) and Waste Management of 
Iowa, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor.") 

WHEREAS, in _______ of 2016 the Contractor and MWA entered into a Compost It! Yard 
Waste Collection and Composting Agreement (the “Agreement”) wherein Contractor agreed to 
collect, remove and deposit at the MWA facility all collectible residential yard waste material from 
eligible residences located within the designated collection area for a period of three years from 
February 1, 2017, through February 1, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement provides that additional terms can be negotiated upon 
mutually agreeable terms; and 

WHEREAS, the parties have negotiated an additional one-year term with a 10% fee 
increase.change from the per ton pay model to a pay per residential unit, at a mutually agreed upon 
amount of $2.53 per unit.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants given each to the 
other, the parties hereby acknowledge the following: 

1. Pursuant to Section 2 of the Agreement, the parties have agreed to extend the term
of the Agreement for one (1) year. 

2. The extended term shall be effective from February March 1, 2020 2021 to
February March 1, 2021 2022 (“Extended Term.”) 

3. Pursuant to Section 4 of the Agreement, and the parties’ agreement to
transition to a per home payment model, the fees per home, per month, 
shall be $2.53. The monthly fee paid to the Contractor by MWA shall be 
calculated based upon the sum of the current house count associated with 
the MWA Curb It! Quarterly House Count for all communities serviced at the 
time each invoice is generated, times the monthly fee per home, per month. 
[e.g., Current House Count x Fee = Monthly Invoice Amount]. Monthly billing 
shall occur for all 12 months of the extended term.   

3. Pursuant to Section 4 of the Agreement, there shall be a 10% fee adjustment for the
Extended Term. The collection fee for the Extended Term shall be $149.82 per ton. 

4. All other terms of the Agreement shall remain effective and enforceable as written.

METRO WASTE AUTHORITY: 

By:____________________________________________ 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

CONTRACTOR: 

36 of 37



WASTE MANAGEMENT OF IOWA, INC. 

By_____________________________________________ 

37 of 37


	Board Memo - pgs. 1 & 2
	Agenda - pgs. 3 & 4
	Agenda Item #5 - Jan. 21 Board Minutes - pgs. 5 - 7
	Agenda Item # 7 - Jan. 21 Expenditures - pgs. 8 -11
	Agenda Item #8 - MPE Land - pgs. 12-19
	Agenda Item #9 -  Yard Waste Contract with ASI - pgs. 20 - 34
	Agenda Item #10 - Yard Waste Extension with WM - pgs. 35 - 37



